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STATE OF WASHINGTON 
KING COUNTY SUPERIOR COURT 

 
 

STATE OF WASHINGTON, 
 
 Petitioner, 
 
 v. 
 
POST HIT, LLC d/b/a HEALTH 
INSURANCE TEAM LLC,   
 
 Respondent. 

NO.    
 
COMPLAINT FOR INJUNCTIVE 
AND OTHER RELIEF 
 

  

 

 Plaintiff, State of Washington, by and through its attorneys Robert W. Ferguson, 

Attorney General, and Will O’Connor and Audrey Udashen, Assistant Attorneys General, bring 

this action against the Post HIT, LLC d/b/a Health Insurance Team LLC (HIT) for violations of 

the Consumer Protection Act, RCW 19.86 (CPA). The CPA prohibits unfair or deceptive acts 

or practices in the conduct of trade or commerce. The State alleges the following on information 

and belief: 

I. JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

1.1 The State files this complaint under the provisions of the Consumer Protection 

Act, RCW 19.86. 

1.2 The Attorney General is authorized under RCW 19.86.020, RCW 19.86.080, and 

RCW 19.86.140 to enforce the CPA.  
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1.3 HIT engaged in the conduct set forth in this Complaint in whole or in part in King 

County, Washington and elsewhere in the State of Washington.  

1.4 Venue is proper in King County pursuant to RCW 4.12.020, RCW 4.12.025, and 

Superior Court Civil Rule 82 because HIT transacts business in King County, and committed the 

actions alleged in this Complaint in part in King County. 

1.5 This Court has personal jurisdiction over HIT pursuant to RCW 4.28.180, RCW 

4.28.185, and RCW 19.86.160 because the acts alleged have been committed in this State. 

1.6 This Court has subject matter jurisdiction over this Complaint under the laws of 

the State of Washington pursuant to RCW 2.08.010.   

II. DEFENDANT 

2.1 Defendant Post HIT, LLC d/b/a Health Insurance Team LLC (HIT), is a 

Washington limited liability company incorporated on April 8, 2011, with its principal place of 

business located at 4800 Stone Way N, Seattle, Washington.   

III. NATURE OF TRADE AND COMMERCE 

3.1 HIT is now, and at all times relevant to this action, engaged in trade or commerce 

within the meaning of RCW 19.86.020 by marketing its services to Washington consumers.   

3.2 HIT marketed to Washington consumers through its website, 

washingtonhealthplanfinder.org (Website), offering to provide Washington consumers an easy 

method to shop for and compare health insurance plans, including state-based exchange plans 

that qualify under the Affordable Care Act.    

IV. FACTS 

4.1 In 2011, the Washington legislature established the Washington Health Benefit 

Exchange (Exchange). RCW 43.71.020 

4.2 The Exchange was created to implement, in the State of Washington, the Patient 

Protection and Affordable Care Act (ACA), 42 U.S.C. §§ 18001 et seq., a federal statute enacted in 

2010 that comprehensively reformed the health care industry in the United States. 



 

COMPLAINT FOR INJUNCTIVE AND 
OTHER RELIEF UNDER THE 
CONSUMER PROTECTION ACT - 3 

 ATTORNEY GENERAL OF WASHINGTON 
Consumer Protection Division 
800 Fifth Avenue, Suite 2000 

Seattle, WA  98104-3188 
(206) 464-7744 

 
 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

4.3 The legislature’s stated intent in creating the Washington Health Benefit Exchange 

was to: (1) increase access to quality affordable health care coverage; (2) provide consumer choice 

and portability of health insurance; (3) create an organized, transparent, and accountable health 

insurance marketplace for Washingtonians; and (4) empower consumers to compare plans and 

make informed decisions about their health care coverage, among other stated purposes. 

RCW 43.71.005(2). 

4.4 To achieve the legislature’s stated purpose of providing quality health care 

coverage, it gave the Exchange authority to certify health insurance plans, called Qualified Plans, 

that met specific criteria, including coverage of essential medical treatments and health benefits. 

RCW 43.71.065.    

4.5 To market and sell these plans, the Exchange was given the authority to create an 

“enrollment portal,” an online platform for consumers to buy Qualified Plans. RCW 43.71.030.   

4.6 On October 23, 2012, the Exchange announced the name of its online platform, 

Washington Healthplanfinder, along with a logo for the platform and the tagline “Click. Compare. 

Covered.” Press Release, Washington Health Benefit Exchange, Washington Health Benefit 

Exchange Reveals New Name (Oct. 23, 2012), https://www.wahbexchange.org/washington-health-

benefit-exchange-reveals-new-name/ (last visited Oct. 6, 2020). 

4.7 The Exchange developed its platform’s name, Washington Healthplanfinder, along 

with its logo and tagline, after extensive branding efforts and testing.   

4.8 Washington Healthplanfinder has operated under the domain name 

wahealthplanfinder.org since 2013. 

4.9 HIT is an insurance brokerage with a principal place of business in Seattle, 

Washington.   

4.10 On the same day the Exchange publicly announced the name of its online platform, 

Washington Healthplanfinder, HIT registered twelve domain names with the phrase 

“healthplanfinder,” including the domain name washingtonhealthplanfinder.org. 
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4.11 Prior to registering these domain names, HIT had no history of using the phrase 

“healthplanfinder.”  

4.12  In the months leading up to the first open enrollment period for the Exchange 

in 2013, HIT used the deceptive domain names that it had registered, including 

washingtonhealthplanfinder.org, to develop a website that had the capacity to create the deceptive 

net impression that it was the Exchange’s website. 

4.13 The original design of HIT’s website used the term “healthplanfinder” at the top 

of the home page, with an image of the State of Washington beside it. The phrase 

“healthplanfinder” mimicked the style of the Exchange’s trademark, as one word, with all lower-

case letters, and highlighting “plan” in the center of the phrase “healthplanfinder,” with a 

different color font.  

4.14 The original home page read “Welcome to the Exchange.” 

4.15 The original design of HIT’s Website incorporated visual characteristics similar 

to the Exchange’s website, such as the use of a series of scrolling photos with a banner 

announcing open enrollment.  

4.16 HIT obtained a toll-free phone number that was one digit removed from the 

Exchange’s number, advertising this new number on the original version of its website. 

4.17 The only indication that HIT’s website belonged to HIT was a small, vague notice 

at the bottom of the page stating “Powered by Health Insurance Team.”     

4.18 In the months leading up to the Exchange’s first open enrollment period in 2013 

(October 1 through December 15), HIT continued to register deceptive domain names, including 

wahealthplanfinders.org (emphasis added), a domain name that is nearly identical to Washington 

Healthplanfinder’s domain name, wahealthplanfinder.org.  

4.19 HIT activated many of its deceptive domain names, and used them to route 

consumers to its website, which displayed the domain name washingtonhealthplanfinder.org in 

the address bar. 
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4.20 HIT changed the content and design of its website in 2013. However, the 

website’s capacity to deceive consumers into believing the website belonged to the Exchange 

remained.  

4.21 In November 2019, the website (a) continued to use deceptive domain names like 

washingtonhealthplanfinder.org; (b) failed to adequately disclose that it was operated by HIT, a 

private insurance brokerage; (c) used the Exchange’s Twitter feed and logo; (d) included 

statements such as: “We are your one stop resource to navigate you through all the changes 

taking place in the Washington Health Insurance Exchange.”       
 

V. FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION 
Unfair and Deceptive Acts in Violation of the Consumer Protection Act, RCW 19.86 

5.1 Plaintiff realleges Paragraphs 1.1 through 4.22 and incorporates them as if set 

forth fully herein. 

5.2 HIT engaged in deceptive conduct by creating and operating a website that had 

the capacity to deceive a substantial number of consumers. 

5.3 HIT created a deceptive net impression that its website was the Exchange’s 

website by engaging in the actions alleged in the complaint, including but not limited to: 

a. Using the domain name washingtonhealthplanfinder.org, and other 

domain names, that are deceptively similar to the Exchange’s domain name, 

wahealthplanfinder.org;  

b. Using visual characteristics that mimicked those of the Exchange; 

c. Making representations that implied that its website was the Exchange’s 

website; and   

d. Failing to adequately disclose that its website was run by HIT, a private 

insurance brokerage, rather than the Exchange.   
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5.4 HIT engaged in “trade” or “commerce” within the meaning of the Consumer 

Protection Act, RCW 19.86.010(2), by advertising, marketing, and soliciting business from its  

headquarters in  Seattle.  

5.5 HIT’s unfair and deceptive acts and practices have affected the public interest and 

are likely to continue without relief from this Court.  

5.6 Based on the above unfair and deceptive acts and practices, Plaintiff is entitled to 

relief under the Consumer Protection Act, including injunctive relief and restitution pursuant to 

RCW 19.86.080, civil penalties pursuant to RCW 19.86.140 of up to two thousand dollars 

($2,000) per violation for each and every violation of RCW 19.86.020, and reimbursement of 

the  costs  of this action, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, pursuant to RCW 19.86.080. 

VI. PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

 WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, STATE OF WASHINGTON, prays for relief as follows: 

6.1 That the Court adjudge and decree that HIT has engaged in the conduct complained 

of herein. 

6.2 That the Court adjudge and decree that the conduct complained of constitutes unfair 

or deceptive acts or practices in violation of the Consumer Protection Act, RCW 19.86. 

6.3 That the Court issue a permanent injunction enjoining and restraining HIT and its 

representatives, successors, assigns, officers, agents, servants, employees, and all other persons 

acting or claiming to act for, on behalf of, or in active concert or participation with HIT from 

continuing or engaging in the unlawful conduct complained of herein. 

6.4 That the Court assess civil penalties, pursuant to RCW 19.86.140, of up to two 

thousand dollars ($2,000) per violation against HIT for each and every violation of RCW 19.86.020 

caused by the conduct complained of herein. 

6.5 That the Court make such orders pursuant to RCW 19.86.080 as it deems 

appropriate to provide for restitution to consumers of money or property acquired by HIT as a result 

of the conduct complained of herein. 
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6.6 That the Court make such orders pursuant to RCW 19.86.080 to provide that 

Plaintiff, State of Washington, have and recover from HIT the costs of this action, including 

reasonable attorneys’ fees. 

6.7 That the Court order such other relief as it may deem just and proper. 

DATED this 15th day of October, 2020. 

ROBERT W. FERGUSON 
Attorney General 

WILL O’CONNOR, WSBA #52441  
AUDREY UDASHEN, WSBA #42868 
Assistant Attorneys General 
Attorneys for Plaintiff State of Washington 
800 Fifth Avenue, Suite 2000 
Seattle, WA 98104-3188 
(206) 442-4486
will.oconnor@atg.wa.gov




